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1. Name
historic RnwA-rv .^avinia« Rank

and/or common

2. Location
street & number 130 Bowery Si, not for publication

city, town New York vicinity of congressional district 18

state New York code 036 county New York code 061

3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use

district public X occupied agriculture museum
__X. building(s) __X- private unoccupied __X commercial park

structure both work in progress educational private residence
site Public Acquisition Accessible entertainment religious
object in process yes: restricted government scientific

being considered yes: unrestricted industrial transportation
no military other:

4. Owner of Property
name The Bownyy .Savings P^nk
street & number up East 42nd Street

city, town New York vicinity of state fj YotV

5. Location of Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc, VnrV rmmfy RAgicter**; OFFiVa

street & number 31 Chambers Street
city, town New York state New York

6. Representation in Existing Surveys
property been determined elegible? ___ yes ^ no

date April 19, 1966________________________ ___federal ___ state ___ county x local

depository for survey records New York City Landmarks Preservation ________

city, town New York state New York



7. Description
Condition Check one Check one

X excellent deteriorated __X- unaltered __x- original site
qnnd ruins altered moved date
fair unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Bowery Savings Bank is a grand marble neo-Roman building designed by McKim, 
Mead § White in 1893. Its peculiar L-shaped plot gives it a double presence in two 
adjoining neighborhoods. The front on the Bowery is the major architectural presence 
on what is otherwise a dilapidated skid row; the Grand Street front is one of the 
finest in Little Italy, where it is surrounded for the most part by new-law tenements. 
The Bowery Savings Bank has maintained its building extremely well, and it remains 
almost entirely unaltered from its original appearance.

Because of the bank's location and development its plot had two peculiarities 
around which the architects had to base their design: it is L-shaped, composed of
the original bank site on the Bowery and a newly purchased square plot at the comer 
of Grand and Elizabeth Streets, and it is irregular, as the area's streets all inter­
sect at odd angles. The solution to the first problem was to treat the original plot 
as a grand entrance hall leading from the traditional Bowery entrance up to the new 
main banking space. Symbolizing this function, the Bowery front is designed as a 
Corinthian temple front enframing a triumphal arch. The temple front, approached by 
a flight of steps, is composed of a giant order of piers, with fretwork capitals 
and Corinthian columns, which support an architrave and pediment. A floral frieze 
in the architrave surrounds the words THE BOWERY SAVINGS BANK; within the pediment, 
which is capped with acroteria, is a sculpted group, by Frederick MacMonnies, of a 
male and female figxire, each with a lion, reclining against a central clock. The tri- 
mphal entrance arch, with roundels in the spandrels and a console at the apex, opens 
into a coffered barrel vault; the actual entrance into the building is through two 
smaller doors.

The second problem was handled on the exterior by keeping the Grand and Elizabeth 
Street fronts from meeting at the comer, making clear, as Russell Sturgis wrote at 
the time, that they were applied facades rather than an expression of the building's 
stmcture, but also making the obtuse angle of the comer less apparent.^ On the in­
terior, the architects, using a neo-Classical device, created a "room within a room"^ 
by inscribing a square composed of a giant order of marbleized Corinthian columns 
within the irregular trapezoidal space, creating the illusion of a regularly propor­
tioned banking room. The Elizabeth Street front of the bank is composed of a giant 
order of Corinthian pilasters, corresponding exactly to the interior colimms, support­
ing a plain architrave with an attic above topped with an antefix of anthemia. Each 
of the five bays contains a large aedicular window and a smaller window above. The 
Grand Street facade is the same, but with a temple front similar to that on the Bowery 
front superimposed over it, to frame the bank's secondary entrance.

All the windows and doors are covered with elaborate wrought-iron grilles. Both 
the Grand Street and Bowery fronts retain original fixtures connected with the bank: 
iron lamps affixed to the walls, bronze stanchions with the "Bowery" sign, and gilded 
notice signs sitting on the steps on Grand Street. The Bowery entrance still has its 
Roman style floor mosaics, matching those on the interior.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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Interior

Entrance hall: giant order of marbleized columns, with gilt Ionic capi­
tals, framing hall — Roman style floor mosaics — paneled ceiling, with floral 
and fret moldings and gilded rosettes — large wall panels, with fret and floral gilt 
molding, on which hang portraits of the bank presidents — marble wainscotting,

Main banking room: giant order of marbleized Corinthian columns with
gilded capitals forming square, matching pilasters behind them on the walls — 
Ionic entrance porch from Grand Street — Roman style floor mosaics — aedicu- 
lar windows formed by two Ionic pilasters supporting an architrave and pediment 
heavily ornamented "grotteschi" type molding on upper windows, some framing 
marble panels, others framing translucent panes — high relief frieze of swags 
in heavily ornamental architrave above giant order — coffered vault ceiling, 
containing elaborate skylight of circle within square, with floral molding.

^Russell Sturgis, "The Works of McKim, Mead § White," Great American Archi­
tects Series, Nos. 1-6; May 1895-July 1899. The Architectural Record Co. (Re- 
print. New York: DaCapo Press, 1977), p. 103.

^Leland Roth, "The Urban Architecture of McKim, Mead § White" (unpublished 
Ph.D. dissertation. Department of Art History, Yale University, 1973),p. 484.



8. Significance
Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

prehistoric
1400-1499
1500-1599
1600-1699
1700-1799
1800-1899
1900-

. archeology-prehistoric community planning landscape architecture___ religion

. archeology-historic 

. agriculture 

. architecture 

. art

. commerce 

. communications

. conservation 

. economics 

. education 

. engineering 

. exploration/settlement 

. industry 

. invention

law
. literature 
. military 
. music 
philosophy 
politics/government

. science 

. sculpture 

. social/ 
humanitarian 

. theater 

. transportation 

. other (specify)

Specific dates i go?

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Builder/Architect P,

The Bowery Savings Bank, designed by Stanford White in 1893, was one of the 
very first neo-Roman buildings to follow the popularization of that style at the 
Chicago World's Columbian Exposition in the same year. Its sculptural groups were 
designed by Frederick MacMonnies^, one of America's best late 19th centmry sculp­
tors, whose reputation had just been made at the same Exposition. The l^nk, 
founded at this address, "is reputed to be the only bank in New York which retains 
a branch on the site where it first started business.

The bank takes its name from the Bowery, the major thoroughfare of the neigh­
borhood, which was in turn named for Peter Stuyvesant's "bouwerie" or farm. The 
bank is indirectly connected with what was once the area's major industry, for it 
was founded, and its site in part originally occupied, by the National Butchers' 
and Drovers' Bank, which served the cattle and butcher trades, "in New York's early days centered at the famous Bull's Head in the Bowery."^ The National Butchers' 
and Drovers' Bank had moved to 128 Bowery in 1831, but in 1835 bought the adjoin­
ing site of 124 Bowery, at the comer of Grand Street, and allowed the newly formed 
Bowery Bank to take over the plot. The Bowery acquired 130 Bowery, next door, in 
1856, doubling the size of its plot, and adopting 130 as the address of the site 
which it has now occupied for nearly 150 years.^

The Bowery Savings Bank grew to be much larger than its founder, and by 1893 
was said to have amassed "the greatest amount of assets, a total of about $53,000,000, 
of any financial institution in the country1'5 The United States was entering a de­
pression in that year, but the Bowery had the resources and the desire to meet its 
increasing business with "more suitable accommodations.In 1891, the bank's direct­
ors had acquired additional lots at the comer of Grand and Elizabeth Streets which 

backed onto their property, creating the present L-shaped plot, and in 1893 they de­
molished their building and hired the most prestigious architectural firm in New York, 
McKim, Mead 8 White, to design a new headquarters in the Roman style, which had just 
been triumphantly popularized by them and other Eastern architects at the Chicago 
Fair. They were also able to hire Frederick MacMonnies, whose reputation had just 
been secured at the same fair with his "Triumph of Columbia.

The Roman style had appeared in New York as early as 1875 in George B. Post's 
Williamsburg Savings Bank in Brooklyn, but the Chicago Exposition created a tremen­
dous fashion for it, which lasted for the next several decades. McKim, Mead § White, 
in their maturity, became closely identified with the new style -- one of their 
most famous and monumental such works being the old Pennsylvania Station in New 
York (1906-1910) — but the Bowery Savings Bank was their first Roman building follow­
ing the fair, designed in May of the same year.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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9. Major Bibliographical References

See Continuation Sheet

10. Geographical Data IITM KHT VERIFIED
Acreage of nominated property less than 1 acre
Quadrangle name__Brooklyn
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Verbal boundary description and justification
Building occupies Borough of ManTtattan Tax Map Block 470; Lot 61 and is approximately 
50' X 100' X 100' (see attached map).

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 

state code county code

state code county ’code

11. Form Prepared By
Contact: Elizabeth Spencer-Ralph, 518-474-0479

name/title Anthony Wayne Robins. Landmarks Preservation Specialist ■ _______

organization Landmarks Preservation Commission. N.Y.C. date August. 1979

street & number 305 Broadway telephone (212) 566-7577

city or town New York state New York

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this property within the state is: 

___ national ___ state _JL local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89- 
665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated 
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Hecitage Conservitibn and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

■'1

title Director, Historic Preservation Field Services Bureau date
For HCRS use only

1 hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register

date
Keeper of the National RegisterJJ

date /UeI
.-

i
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Frederick MacMonnies (1863-1937) who trained and spent most of his 
working life in Paris, was America’s preeminent, if expatriate, Beaux- 
Arts sculptor. His other New York works include the sculpture on the 
Memorial Arch at Grand Army Plaza in Brooklyn, the Horse Tamers in 
Prospect Park, the Truth and Beauty fountains at the New York Public 
Library at 42nd Street, and Nathan Hale at City Hall Park. His pediment 
sculpture for the Bowery Savings Bank was among his first commissions 
following his Chicago triumph.®

^Leland Roth, 'The Urban Architecture of McKim, Mead 8 White" (unpub­
lished Ph.D. dissertation. Department of Art History, Yale University, 
1973), p. 485.

^Landmarks Preservation Commission, Bowery Savings Bank Designation Re­
port (LP-0184) (New York: City of New York, 1966).

^oses King, King's Handbook of New York City (2nd edition, Boston: 
Moses King, 1893), p. 720.

^New York County, Register's Office, Liber Deeds 270, p. 295; 313, 
p. 487; 332, p. 149; 592, p. 264.

SKing, p. 776.

6lbid.

^"MacMonnies, Frederick," The Britannica Encyclopedia of American Art, 
p. 356.

Sibid.
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mm BOWERY SAVINGS BANK
New York County, New York
Manhattan Land Book. Plate 18
New York : Sanborn Map Company, 1978-79
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